1988

George K. Schoney and Erma J. Schoney, et al., v. Memorial Estates, Inc., et al., : Brief of Appellant

Utah Court of Appeals

JURISDICTIONAL STATEMENT

Appellate jurisdiction is conferred pursuant to §78-2-2(3)(1) Utah Code Ann.. This case was poured over to the Court of Appeals pursuant to §78-2-2(4) Utah Code Ann.

STATEMENT OF FACTS

Defendant is in the business of providing cemetery and mausoleum spaces, funeral services, markers, caskets, and similar products. From 1972 to 1974, Defendant began a mausoleum sales program called "public relations sales program." (Moore depo. p.12). Mausoleums were to be located at a Redwood Road location and one at 3115 East 7800 South called the "Mountain View" location. Under this program, one-half the spaces of a proposed mausoleum were sold to families before construction (Id. at 9, 14-15). Once one-half of the mausoleum spaces were sold, construction would begin. (Id.) This is called "pre-need" because the sale is made before the time of death. (Id. at 8.) The sales program represented to consumers that the pre-need price was at cost and did not include a profit. (Id. at 9.)

Sometime in 1973 or 1974, a salesman for defendant, Bill Nordin, called on the Schoney family to sell them spaces in a mausoleum. (Nordin depo. p.8.) After hearing Nordin's

"usual presentation," the Schoneys purchased two spaces in an unconstructed mausoleum. (Nordin depo. p.9; Exhibit 1 to plaintiff's Complaint.) The purchase agreement (labeled the "Mausoleum Estate Agreement") obligated defendant in part:

To provide use of the full service chapel ...

* * *

To complete the mausoleum with construction. . . within one year from the date that the Public Relations Development Program on that is completed.

(Exhibit 1 to plaintiff's Complaint). The contract does not specify whether the spaces were to be at the Redwood Road or Mountain View Mausoleum.

Nordin showed the Schoneys a drawing that laid out the crypt locations in the mausoleum. (George Schoney depo p. 10.) George and Erma selected two specific crypts located "at eye level". (Id. at 10,11). George Schoney testified that the mausoleum space he purchased was "the Memorial Estates in the east side" (Id. at 19) commonly known as the Mountain View location (Id. at 20). See also George Schoney depo. p. 21, 22 "[the family] didn't want to be buried over there on the west side anyway. . ." Erma Schoney depo. p. 4-5, 9) Nordin represented that a chapel had been started at the Mountain View location (Id. at 22). He further stated that the Schoneys would have access to the Mountain View chapel and be able to have funeral services at the chapel. (Id. at 22).

Nordin promised that the Schoneys would have use of the chapel at no charge (Erma Schoney depo. p. 8). He also

stated that the money from the Schoney's purchase would be specifically used for construction of the mausoleum. (Id.) Paul Moore, former general sales manager for defendant from 1960-1966, and a sales representative from 1972-1974 (Moore depo. p. 4, 5) confirmed that it was his understanding that the money would be used for building the mausoleum. (Id. at 9, 14, 15).

During Nordin's presentation, he showed the Schoneys pictures of the chapel and proposed mausoleum at Mountain View. (George Schoney depo. p. 9). Moore agreed that it was a standard policy to show an artists drawing of what the mausoleum would look like. (Moore depo. p 22, 23). The drawing was identified as Exhibit 1 to the Moore deposition.

Several months after the Schoneys had purchased pre-need spaces at Mountain View, Erma's father (Clint Wheeler) died. (Erma Schoney depo. p. 9). It had always been the intent of the Schoneys and Erma's parents to be interred together at Mountain View. (Affidavit of Erma Schoney, 1/5/88 para. 1, 2). Because the Mountain View mausoleum was not built, Erma had no choice but to have her father buried in the ground as a temporary arrangement. (Erma Schoney depo. p. 9). This temporary ground burial was induced by defendant's promise that "he [Erma's father] would only be there [i.e. in the ground] about six months." (Id.) (See also George Schoney depo. p. 41 "he would be moved in six months.") Erma and her family were "strongly opposed to ground burial" for personal reasons. (Erma Schoney affidavit, para. 5; Erma Schoney depo. p. 18.) Because the

Schoneys were assured that Clinton Wheeler's ground burial was only temporary, no marker was placed on his grave. (Affidavit of Erma Schoney, para. 5).

After Clinton Wheeler's burial in 1974, Erma and her mother went to the Mountain View cemetery "lots of times" to "see if they were building it [i.e. the mausoleum]." (Erma Schoney depo. p. 11). Erma was "very concerned" about it and "worried". (Id.) Erma asked the defendant when the mausoleum was to be built. (Id.) George also testified that he went "once a year" to see about the building of the mausoleum (George Schoney depo. p. 40). Defendant "told George that it would be started in the near future; this went on for 8 years. (Id. at 42).

Eventually, George was told that "there wasn't enough people interested at the present time for them to build a mausoleum." (Id. at 48-49). George got the impression that "they would never build it." (Id.). It was in 1981 that George decided defendant wasn't going to build a mausoleum, and so he and Erma and Mrs. Wheeler purchased alternate spaces at Sunset Lawn mausoleum. (Id. at p. 43, 45). The Schoneys alleged that this was on or before March 29, 1981. (Second Amended Complaint, para. 11).

During the passing years, defendant failed to keep track of the unmarked grave of Clinton Wheeler. (Affidavit of Erma Schoney, para. 7). Erma and defendant disagreed as to where Wheeler was buried. (Erma Schoney depo. p. 16). As a result, defendant's agent "had to use a long metal probe to locate the

casket." (Affidavit of Erma Schoney, para. 7; Erma Schoney depo. p. 16). Erma averred that "to disturb his grave in this manner was very distressful to us." (Id.).

Sometime prior to about 1977, the cemetery chapel at Mountain View was completed. The Schoneys alleged that the cemetery chapel was rented as office space. (Fifth Amended Complaint, para. 31). This was conceded in Mr. Holt's deposition where he stated that the salesmen "know that the area of the building that will eventually house the pews and the whole operation is currently office space..." (Holt depo. p. 42; R. 1399). Defendant instead substituted use of L.D.S. chapels which were provided to defendant free of charge. (Id. at p. 44). The chapel was rented to defendant's previous company, Security National Life Insurance Co. (Quist depo. Ex. 1 and 2). The total proceeds received by defendant from renting the cemetery chapel is at least \$200,000. (Quist depo. exhibits 3-11).

After the Schoneys decided that defendant was not going to build a mausoleum at Mountain View in the foreseeable future, they purchased substitute mausoleum spaces in an existing mausoleum at Sunset Lawn. (Erma Schoney depo. p. 12). Erma averred that:

Before my mother died, we asked Memorial Estates to release my father's body so it would be placed next to his wife at Sunset Lawn when she died. Memorial Estates refused. Finally, on the morning of my mother's funeral, they released his body. This was severely distressing and upsetting to us, to be faced with the inability to lay my parents to rest together. Even more upsetting was the fact that my mother never

knew she would be able to be interred with her husband.

(Affidavit of Erma Schoney, paragraph 8.) George testified that "right up until the night before the funeral, we didn't know but what we were going to have him in one place and her in another place. . ." (Id.). George confirmed that Erma "spent a lot of nights worrying about it . . . it caused a lot of grief." (George Schoney depo. p. 47-48).

George stated that he "still had the nightmare, until we found another place [i.e. Sunset Lawn] that I could be there any time, the same way." (Id. at 46).

When defendant finally relented and allowed Mr. Wheeler to be disinterred and transferred to Sunset Lawn, the Schoneys learned that there had been water damage to Mr. Wheeler's casket due to what appeared to be poor materials used. (George Schoney depo. p. 47).

PROCEDURAL HISTORY

Class Certification:

The Schoneys brought their claims individually and on behalf of a class of pre-need consumers of defendant's services. On February 10, 1983, the action was certified as a class action by Judge Fishler. (R. 202). The class was defined as "all those persons who have signed a standard form agreement for the purchase of mausoleum space from the defendant." (R. 294). On February 10, 1984, defendant moved to have the class decertified. (R. 487). On June 24, 1985, Judge Dee entered an order

decertifying the class. (R. 704). Judge Dee refused to enter findings of fact and conclusions of law in support of the decertification order. (R. 681). Plaintiffs successfully obtained a writ of mandamus requiring Judge Dee to enter findings of fact and conclusions of law to support decertification. (R. 998). Judge Dee's findings and conclusions were entered on December 4, 1985. (R. 1053).

Discovery:

Plaintiffs served interrogatories on defendant on June 17, 1982. (R. 12). Defendant answered the interrogatories on August 27, 1982, approximately 26 days late. (R. 50). Plaintiff submitted to defendant a second request for documents on January 28, 1983. (R. 197). No answer has ever been filed. The Schoneys submitted a third request for documents on March 1, 1983. (R. 225). No response has ever been filed.

Defendant submitted a second set of interrogatories on July 11, 1983, to the Schoneys. (R. 328A). They timely responded 30 days later on August 11, 1983. (R. 356).

The initial round of discovery was completed by August 11, 1983. No further discovery was conducted until June 12, 1987, when plaintiffs submitted further interrogatories and another request for documents. Defendant sought and received an extension of time until September 15, 1987, to answer discovery. (R. 1121). A discovery cut-off was imposed of December 8, 1987, and a trial date of December 7, 1988 set. (R. 1136). Defendant did not answer by September 15. Finally, on October 28, 1987,

the Schoneys' counsel sent a letter reminding defendant of its discovery obligation and delay. (R. 1164). Defendant partially answered plaintiff's discovery by mailing interrogatory answers on November 24, 1987. (R. 1166). This was 13 days before discovery cut-off. Plaintiff was forced to bring a motion to compel further answers on December 8, 1987. (R. 1150). This motion was granted, in part, by order entered December 23, 1987. The Schoneys also requested more time to do follow-up discovery because of defendant's late and incomplete answers. This request was denied. (R. 1187).

Meanwhile, defendant sent discovery to plaintiffs on June 26, 1987. Plaintiffs' answers were filed (without objection from defendant) on August 13, 1987. Defendant claims to have sent a final set of interrogatories and requests for documents to plaintiffs' counsel on April 29, 1988. These were answered on June 20, 1988. Because the answers were 18 days late, Judge Moffat struck plaintiffs' complaint and entered default judgment against them.

Trial Settings:

Plaintiff first certified the case for trial on May 3, 1983. (R. 263). Defendant objected. (R. 269). Plaintiff again certified the case on September 13, 1983. (R. 390). Upon Judge Leary's poor health, plaintiff moved for a new trial judge to avoid delay. (R. 522).

Plaintiffs certified the case as ready for trial on April 22, 1986. (R. 1067). By scheduling order of September 22,

1986, the case was given a first place trial setting on February 9, 1987. (R. 1069). However, Judge Dee suddenly retired effective January 31, 1987. Plaintiff requested a special pro tempore judge to prevent delay of a trial. (R. 1085). This was denied. By scheduling order of May 14, 1987, the case was given a trial date of August 24, 1987. (R. 1096). Upon defendant's request for a continuance, the trial date was changed to December 7, 1987. (R. 1136). This was again changed to February 1, 1988 upon defendant's request. (R. 1139). Upon the court's own motion, the trial was continued. (R. 1301). Upon plaintiff's request (R. 1336 and 1338), the case was reset for trial on July 6, 1988. (R. 1360).

Summary Judgment:

On February 10, 1984, defendant moved for summary judgment as to all causes of action in plaintiffs' Second Amended Complaint. (R. 494). On June 24, 1985, Judge Dee entered an order denying defendant's motion. (R. 693). Defendant filed a second motion for summary judgment as to all causes in this complaint on December 29, 1987. (R. 1200). This motion was in all material respects the same as the February 10, 1987 motion. This second motion was denied by Judge Moffat on January, 1988. (R. 1301). Defendant filed a third motion for summary judgment on June 14, 1988. (R. 1363). This motion was granted by Judge Moffat as to all causes in plaintiffs' complaint on June 27, 1988. (R. 1377).

POINT

DEFENDANT SHOULD HAVE BEEN REQUIRED TO PLACE
75% OF THE SCHONEY'S PAYMENTS IN TRUST UNDER
U.C.A. 22-4-1

A. Claim for Breach of Trust - 22-4-1.

Utah Code Ann. §22-4-1 required defendant to maintain 75% of the money paid by pre-need plaintiffs in a trust. The statute at the time of plaintiffs' purchase applied when "money is paid for a purpose of finishing or performing funeral services or the furnishing or delivery of any personal property, merchandise, or services of any nature to be conveyed or delivered at any time. . . for future use at a time determinable by the death of the person ...". §22-4-1. The act excludes "cemetery lots, vaults, mausoleum crypts, niches, cemetery burial privileges, and cemetery space..." (Emphasis added). Plaintiff claimed that the exclusion for "mausoleum crypts" did not extend to unconstructed mausoleum crypts.

The legislature amended §22-4-1 in 1983 to include:

personal property, merchandise, or services
of any nature to be conveyed or delivered at
any time ... including ...unconstructed
mausoleum crypts..."

B. §22-4-1 (1971) Required a 75% Trust.

Pre-need sales have been so flagrantly abused in the cemetery business, that over half the states have enacted pre-need laws. These laws require that money paid under a pre-need cemetery contract be held in trust. The case of Utah Funeral Directors v. Memorial Gardens of the Valley, 408 P.2d 190, 17 Utah 2d 227 (1965), explains the purpose of these statutes:

One of the main purposes of the pre-need laws is to make sure that after the solicitations of such contracts, the embalming and funeral services will be furnished as contracted to the extent that the trust funds and earnings can accomplish this. 17 Utah 2d at 232.

State v. Anderson, 408 P.2d 864 (Kan. 1965) added:

[Because of] a great time lag between the time of beginning and performance . . . there is a public interest in the protection of funds intended for a particular purpose, from whatever hazard, whether the normal vicissitudes of business, or plain fraud and deceit.

The statute as originally written in 1971 shows from its face that it meant to cover pre-need arrangements. The title refers to trusts for "pre-arranged funeral plans," and indicated a broad reading of that phrase to include "any agreement" to provide property and services in the future at the time of death. The sale of pre-need mausoleum space fits this intention. The exceptions list what are normally understood to be existing property and services. This would not include pre-need mausoleum spaces. The purpose of protecting pre-need consumers would be frustrated by a reading excluding pre-need mausoleum sales from the trust protection.

Defendant's claim was that it was selling "mausoleum crypts." However, defendant did not sell a mausoleum crypt. It sold the right to the use of a non-existent piece of personal property at a time determined by the plaintiff's death. Defendant sold a promise to build a crypt (services) to be performed in the future. Thus, the 75% trust exemption for "mausoleum crypts" should not apply.

C. If 22-4-1 (1971) Was Unclear, Then The 1983 Revision Should Apply Retroactively.

The 1983 legislature made explicit that the 75% trust applied to unconstructed mausoleum crypts. The Utah Supreme Court has held "when the purpose of an amendment is to clarify the meaning of an earlier enactment, the amendment may be applied retroactively in pending actions." State, Dept. of Soc. Services v. Higgs, 656 P.2d 998, 1001 (Utah 1982) ... " Shelter America Corp. v. Ohio Cas. & Ins. Co., 745 P.2d 843, 845 (Utah App. 1987). The 1971 version was at least unclear whether the 75% trust applied to pre-need unconstructed mausoleum crypts. The 1983 amendments made clear the intent of the prior enactment, and the amendment should apply in pending actions such as this one.

Further, since the operation of a cemetery is impressed with a public purpose, any contract implicitly includes a clause rendering the contract subject to any changes made in the laws. Diamant v. Mnt. Pleasant Westchester Cemetery Corp., 201 N.Y.S. 2d 861 (Sup. 1960); Grove Hill Realty Co. v. Fercliff Ass'n., 198 N.Y.S. 2d 287 (A.D. 1960). Silver Mtn. Cem. Ass'n v. Simon, 231 N.Y.S. 2d 909 (Sup. Ct. 1962). Similarly, each contract has an implied term that the performance of the contract will comply with any applicable law. Hall v. Warren, 632 P.2d 848 (Utah 1980). Thus, the Schoneys are entitled, at a minimum, to interest on 75% of her contract payments from 1983 to the present.

POINT

THERE WAS AMPLE EVIDENCE THAT DEFENDANT HAD
BREACHED THE SCHONEYS' CONTRACT BY DELAYING
CONSTRUCTION OF THE MOUNTAIN VIEW MAUSOLEUM

A. Claim for Delay in Construction.

Plaintiffs claimed defendant was obligated to build a mausoleum at Mountain View "within one year from the date that the Public Relations Development Program on that unit is completed." (Mausoleum Sales Agreement, para. headed "Design and Construction;" Fifth Amended Complaint, para. 2.) It was conceded by defendants that the Public Relation Development Program is completed upon sale of 1/2 of the spaces in the mausoleum. (Tr. at p. 22-24). Plaintiff claimed that defendants delayed the actual completion of the Public Relations Development Program by voluntarily abandoning sales of the mausoleum spaces. (Fifth Amended Complaint, para. 3-5).

B. Defendant's Obligation to Build a Mausoleum Began one Year After it Stopped Selling Mausoleum Spaces at Mountain View.

The completion of the Public Relations Development Program was a condition precedent to defendant's performance. Kimball v. Campbell, 699 P.2d 714 (Utah 1985). Because the fulfillment of the conditions was dependent on defendant's acts (i.e. sales of mausoleum spaces), it was required to make a good-faith effort to complete the conditions. Connor v. Stevens School of Business, 560 P.2d 1383 (Utah 1977). When a good faith effort is not made, the condition is deemed fulfilled. Connor, supra. Thus, defendant's obligation to build began one year from the time it failed to make a good-faith effort to fulfill the conditions by selling 1/2 of the spaces.

As early as 1975, defendants had abandoned its active efforts to fulfill the conditions by selling pre-need mausoleum spaces. (Keith Hughes depo., p. 35). A jury could have reasonably found that a good-faith effort to fulfill the condition would require at the least an active continuing effort to sell 1/2 of the spaces. Defendants put no evidence in the record that their abandonment was beyond their control. A jury could have concluded that defendant's obligation to build was triggered when efforts to sell 1/2 the spaces were stopped.

Defendant also contended that plaintiff bought space at Redwood Road and that because a mausoleum was built in 1976, there was no breach. (Tr. at p. 13). However, the Schoneys alleged that they bought mausoleum space at Mountain View. This was supported by the affidavit of Erma Schoney and deposition testimony of both Erma and George Schoney. Because the evidence was conflicting as to whether plaintiffs bought at Mountain View or Redwood, the trial court erred by granting summary judgment on the basis that a mausoleum was timely built at Redwood Road.

POINT

THE SCHONEYS CLAIM THAT DEFENDANT FAILED TO
BUILD THE MAUSOLEUM AS PROMISED SHOULD BE
SENT TO A JURY.

A. Claim for Breach of Warranty.

Plaintiff claimed she was shown a drawing of the mausoleum intended for Mountain View. (Fifth Amended Complaint, para 8.) She alleged that the mausoleum as built was different,

and of inferior quality. The Mountain View mausoleum was built in 1985. (Answer to Interrogatory 5, November 24, 1987).

B. The Statute of Limitations Began to Run When the Mountain View Mausoleum Was Built in 1985.

Defendant contended that plaintiff had bought space at Redwood and, therefore, the wrong, if any, began upon completion of the 1976 Redwood mausoleum. (Tr. at p. 18). Of course, the Schoneys' testimony was always that they bought at Mountain View. Thus, the statute of limitations began to run in 1985 when the Mountain View mausoleum was constructed. Defendant made no claim that plaintiff's claim for breach of warranty was untimely if it related to the Mountain View mausoleum.

C. There was No Evidence in the Record that the Mountain View Mausoleum (As Built) was the Same as the Mausoleum Shown to Plaintiffs.

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