1988

George K. Schoney and Erma J. Schoney v. Memorial Estates, Inc. : Brief of Respondent

Utah Court of Appeals

Follow this and additional works at: https://digitalcommons.law.byu.edu/byu_ca1

Original Brief Submitted to the Utah Court of Appeals; digitized by the Howard W. Hunter Law Library, J. Reuben Clark Law School, Brigham Young University, Provo, Utah; machine-generated OCR, may contain errors.

AEarl Jat Peck; Stephen L. Henriod; Nielsen & Senior; attorneys for respondents.

Robert J. Debry; Daniel F. Bertch; attorneys for appellants.

Daniel F. Bertch Robert J. DeBry Robert J. DeBry & Associates Counsel for Appellant 4001 South 700 East, Suite 500 Murray, Utah 84107 Telephone: (801) 262-8915

Earl Jay Peck Stephen L. Henriod Nielsen & Senior Counsel for Respondents 1100 Beneficial Life Tower 36 South State Street Salt Lake City, Utah 84111 Telephone: (801) 532-1900

Recommended Citation

Brief of Respondent, *Schoney v. Memorial Estates*, No. 880630 (Utah Court of Appeals, 1988).
https://digitalcommons.law.byu.edu/byu_ca1/1413

This Brief of Respondent is brought to you for free and open access by BYU Law Digital Commons. It has been accepted for inclusion in Utah Court of Appeals Briefs by an authorized administrator of BYU Law Digital Commons. Policies regarding these Utah briefs are available at http://digitalcommons.law.byu.edu/utah_court_briefs/policies.html. Please contact the Repository Manager at hunterlawlibrary@byu.edu with questions or feedback.

UTAH COURT OF APPEALS
BRIEF

UTAH
DOCUMENT
KFU
50
.A10
DOCKET NO.

88 0630

IN THE UTAH COURT OF APPEALS

GEORGE K. SCHONEY and ERMA J. SCHONEY, et al.,)	
)	APPENDIX TO THE BRIEF OF
Plaintiff/Appellant,)	RESPONDENTS
)	
vs.)	Case No. 880630-CA
)	
MEMORIAL ESTATES, INC., et al.,)	
)	Category No. 14(b)
Defendants/Respondents.)	

APPEAL FROM THE THIRD JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT,
SALT LAKE COUNTY
JUDGE RICHARD H. MOFFAT

Earl Jay Peck
Stephen L. Henriod
Nielsen & Senior
Counsel for Respondents
1100 Beneficial Life Tower
36 South State Street
Salt Lake City, Utah 84111
Telephone: (801) 532-1900

Daniel F. Bertch
Robert J. DeBry
Robert J. DeBry & Associates
Counsel for Appellant
4001 South 700 East, Suite 500
Murray, Utah 84107
Telephone: (801) 262-8915

FILED
JAN 10 1989
Mary T. Hooper
Clerk of the Court
Utah Court of Appeals

IN THE UTAH COURT OF APPEALS

GEORGE K. SCHONEY and ERMA J. SCHONEY, et al.,)	
)	APPENDIX TO THE BRIEF OF
Plaintiff/Appellant,)	RESPONDENTS
)	
vs.)	Case No. 880630-CA
)	
MEMORIAL ESTATES, INC., et al.,)	
)	Category No. 14(b)
Defendants/Respondents.)	

APPEAL FROM THE THIRD JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT,

SALT LAKE COUNTY

JUDGE RICHARD H. MOFFAT

Earl Jay Peck
Stephen L. Henriod
Nielsen & Senior
Counsel for Respondents
1100 Beneficial Life Tower
36 South State Street
Salt Lake City, Utah 84111
Telephone: (801) 532-1900

Daniel F. Bertch
Robert J. DeBry
Robert J. DeBry & Associates
Counsel for Appellant
4001 South 700 East, Suite 500
Murray, Utah 84107
Telephone: (801) 262-8915


APPENDIX

- A. Second Amended Complaint
- B. Defendant's Memorandum in Support of Motion for Summary Judgment
- C. MacKay Affidavit
- D. Hughes Affidavit
- E. Christensen Affidavit
- F. Schoney Affidavit
- G. Minute Entry on January 15 ruling on Defendants' Motion for Summary Judgment
- H. Fifth Amended Complaint
- I. Order, Summary Judgment and Judgment by Default
- J. Rule 25(a), Utah Rules of Civil Procedure
- K. Rule 37(d), Utah Rules of Civil Procedure
- L. Rule 56(c), Utah Rules of Civil Procedure
- M. Section 22-4-1, Utah Code Annotated, 1953
- N. Section 22-4-1, Utah Code Annotated, 1983
- O. Section 78-12-25, Utah Code Annotated, 1953
- P. Section 78-12-25.5, Utah Code Annotated, 1953

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I hereby certify that on the 10th day of May, 1989, I caused four true and correct copies of the foregoing Appendix to the Brief of Respondents to be placed in the United States Mail, first-class, postage prepaid, addressed to the following:

Daniel F. Bertch
Robert J. DeBry
Robert J. DeBry & Associates
Attorneys for Appellant
40001 South 700 East, 5th Floor
Salt Lake City, Utah 84107



04520

APPENDIX

Second Amended Complaint	A
Defendant's Memorandum in Support of Motion for Summary Judgment	B
MacKay Affidavit	C
Hughes Affidavit	D
Christensen Affidavit	E
Schoney Affidavit.	F
Minute Entry on January 15 ruling on Defendants' Motion for Summary Judgment.	G
Fifth Amended Complaint	H
Order, Summary Judgment and Judgment by Default	I
Rule 25(a), Utah Rules of Civil Procedure	J
Rule 37(d), Utah Rules of Civil Procedure	K
Rule 56(c), Utah Rules of Civil Procedure	L
Section 22-4-1, Utah Code Annotated, 1953	M
Section 22-4-1, Utah Code Annotated, 1983	N
Section 78-12-25, Utah Code Annotated, 1953	O
Section 78-12-25.5, Utah Code Annotated, 1953	P

Tab A

FILMED

FILED IN CLERK'S OFFICE
SALT LAKE COUNTY

JUN 8 8 59 AM '83

H. DIXON, JR. CLERK

[Signature]
DEPUTY CLERK

ROBERT J. DEBRY
ROBERT J. DEBRY & ASSOCIATES
Attorney for Plaintiff
965 East 4800 South, Suite 2
Salt Lake City, Utah, 84117
Telephone: (801) 262-8915

IN THE THIRD JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF SALT LAKE COUNTY
STATE OF UTAH

GEORGE K. SCHONEY, and)	
IRMA J. SCHONEY, for)	
themselves and all others)	
similarly situated,)	
)	
Plaintiffs,)	SECOND AMENDED COMPLAINT
)	
vs.)	
)	
MEMORIAL ESTATES, INC., and)	
MEMORIAL ESTATES CEMETERY)	
DEVELOPMENT CORP., corpora-)	
tions, and JOHN DOES 1 through)	
10, individuals,)	
)	
Defendants.)	Civil No. C 82-4983
)	
)	

The plaintiffs George K. Schoney and Irma J. Schoney complain for themselves and all others similarly situated as follows:

DESCRIPTION OF PARTIES

1. Defendant Memorial Estates, Inc. is a corporation organized pursuant to the laws of the State of Utah, which has its principle place of business at 6500 South Redwood Road in Murray, Utah.

2. Defendant Memorial Estates Cemetery Development Corp. is a corporation organized pursuant to the laws of the State of

Utah, which has its principle place of business at 6500 South Redwood Road in Murray, Utah.

3. The Defendants John Doe 1 through 10, are individuals residing in Salt Lake County, as yet unknown to the plaintiffs.

4. The corporate defendants are and were at all times relevant, interrelated corporations operating under a common scheme to sell pre-need funeral contracts for burial lots, mausoleum crypts, burial services and other funeral merchandise such as grave markers and vaults. The defendant corporations are controlled through common management. Plaintiff alleges on information and belief that at all times relevant to this action the defendants co-mingled corporate funds and in other ways were and are so closely related that the corporateness of one corporate defendant is not distinguishable from the other corporate defendant.

COUNT I

TORTIOUS BAD FAITH

5. Defendants are generally engaged in the cemetery business. As a part of that business, defendants have, at all times relevant hereto maintained an aggressive "pre-need" sales program. Through this sales program, defendants sell real and personal property and cemetery services to purchasers prior to the purchaser's death and burial.

6. In 1973 and years surrounding that time, as part of the defendants' sales program, defendant approached plaintiffs, and others, representing that the defendant was prepared to build a mausoleum for interment of the plaintiffs and others.

Defendants represented that they lacked sufficient capital to complete the construction of the mausoleum and that if plaintiffs would purchase mausoleum space in advance of completion, defendants would use the money received for the construction of the mausoleum.

7. On or about January 23, 1973, as a result of the defendants' aggressive sales program, plaintiffs entered into a written contract with defendants for the purchase of two interment spaces in the mausoleum. The contract is attached hereto as Exhibit A.

8. Between January 23, 1973 and January 20, 1977, plaintiffs duly performed all of their duties and obligations under the contract at issue in this action. On or about January 20, 1977, defendants delivered to plaintiffs a "Deed for Interment Rights", attached hereto as Exhibit B.

9. Defendants have not yet begun construction of the mausoleum sold and promised to the plaintiffs.

10. Plaintiffs are presently in their late fifties. Plaintiff George K. Schoney is suffering from cancer. Over the years, plaintiffs have made frequent inquiries concerning the defendants' plan for completion of the mausoleum promised them. On each occasion defendants lulled plaintiffs with assurances that the work would soon be completed.

11. On or about March 29, 1981, plaintiffs formulated a belief that it was likely that they would die before the completion of the mausoleum promised them by the defendants.

In accord with this belief plaintiffs purchased interment space in another mausoleum not connected with the defendants.

12. Plaintiffs allege on information and belief that defendants do not intend to build the mausoleum space they sold to plaintiffs. Plaintiffs allege further on information and belief that the money paid by them for the construction of mausoleum space has been diverted by defendants for business purposes other than the building of a mausoleum, including the payment of commissions and dividends. Defendants acted with malice in diverting to other uses the money received for construction of the mausoleum.

13. Plaintiffs allege on information and belief that as early as January of 1976, the management and agents of the corporate defendants, herein referred to as John Does 1 through 10, had concluded that they would never build the mausoleum promised the plaintiffs. Despite this change of intent, defendants continued to accept plaintiffs' installment payments until January 20, 1977 when the last payment was made. Defendants acted with malice and in bad faith in not informing plaintiffs of their changed intention and in continuing to accept plaintiffs' money.

14. Plaintiffs allege on information and belief that as early as January of 1976 the defendants formed a scheme to bury deceased purchasers of mausoleum space in cheaper ordinary burial plots. Defendants acted with malice in forming the scheme described in this paragraph 14.

15. As a part of the scheme described in paragraph 14 above, defendants relied on the fact that interested persons would not be aware of the failure to construct mausoleum space until the time of death and bereavement. Defendants further relied on the fact that persons suffering under the stress created by the loss of a loved one would not be willing or able to complain about defendants' failure to construct the mausoleum. The formation and implementation of this scheme to defraud plaintiffs constitutes malice and bad faith on the part of the defendants.

16. Defendants have not made any good faith attempt to complete the mausoleum space promised the plaintiffs and have thereby breached their contractual duty of good faith.

17. As a result of defendants' bad faith, plaintiffs have lost \$1,390.00 plus interest and attorney's fees. As a further result of defendants' bad faith, defendants have been unjustly enriched in the amount of \$1,390.00 plus interest.

COUNT II

BREACH OF CONTRACT

18. Plaintiffs incorporate by reference the allegations contained in paragraphs 1 through 17 above.

19. More than nine years have elapsed since defendants contracted with plaintiffs for the construction of the mausoleum at issue. Defendants' failure to perform their obligations within a reasonable time is a breach of their contract with plaintiffs.

20. The time transpired since the making of the contract is sufficiently great to warrant a conclusion that defendants do not intend to build the mausoleum promised.

21. By reason of defendants' breach of contract, plaintiffs have lost \$1,390.00 plus interest. Defendants have been unjustly enriched in the amount of \$1,390.00 plus interest.

COUNT III

FRAUDULENT CONVEYENCE

22. Plaintiffs incorporate by reference the allegations contained in paragraphs 1 through 21 above.

23. In 1975, defendants issued a "Deed for Interment Rights" to plaintiffs. (The deed is attached as Exhibit B.)

24. That deed purports to grant and convey, for interment purposes only, specific property.

25. In fact, the property conveyed by the deed does not exist. Defendants issued these deeds knowing that the property conveyed did not exist. This was done fraudulently for the purpose of misleading plaintiffs.

26. By reason of defendants' fraudulent conduct, defendants have become liable to plaintiffs in the sum of \$1390.00 plus interest.

COUNT IV

VIOLATION OF UTAH CONSUMER SALES PRACTICES ACT

27. The sale by defendants of mausoleum space is a consumer transaction within the meaning of Section 13-11-3(2) Utah Code Annotated.

28. Defendants' failure to provide mausoleum space is a deceptive practice within the meaning of Section 13-11-4(b) and (d).

29. Defendants have continually represented to plaintiffs that the mausoleum would be built despite their knowledge or belief to the contrary. This and other practices described above are unconscienable practices within the meaning of Section 13-11-5 Utah Code Annotated.

30. Defendant has issued deeds to class members. These deeds purport to convey interment rights in an existing mausoleum. In fact, only 128 mausoleum spaces have been constructed. All other class members have received deeds and property rights to non-existent mausoleums. Said conduct by defendant is a deceptive act within the meaning of §13-11-4(e), Utah Code Annotated, 1953.

31. Plaintiffs have suffered an actual loss within the meaning of Section 13-11-19(4) Utah Code Annotated. The amount of that loss is \$1,390.00 plus interest and attorney's fees.

COUNT V

BREACH OF CONTRACT TO PROVIDE CHAPEL

32. The Mausoleum Estate Agreement provides, in part, that, ". . . The Company agrees to extend to the Purchaser and his immediate family. . . the use of a full service chapel . . ."

33. The promise of a chapel was an essential term of the contract in that such a chapel provides convenience, comfort, and peace at a time of bereavement.

34. The defendants have converted the existing chapel at 3115 East 7800 South, Salt Lake City, Utah into office space.

35. By reason of this unlawful conversion, plaintiffs have suffered the loss of use of the chapel, and defendant has been unjustly enriched by keeping the rental proceeds.

COUNT VI

BREACH OF TRUST

36. As early as 1972, defendants were actively selling mausoleum space on a pre-need basis under a so called public relations development program. Under this program, plaintiffs were sold space in a mausoleum that was yet to be constructed. Defendants represented to plaintiffs that the proceeds collected from these pre-need mausoleum sales would be used to construct a mausoleum unit once enough funds were received to begin construction. Completion of the program as to a mausoleum unit was promised to occur after about 50% of the mausoleum spaces in that unit had been sold.

37. Plaintiffs allege on information and belief that money collected from mausoleum sales was put into the general operating fund of the defendants' corporation and used for general business purposes. Defendants failed to reserve and save the money collected from mausoleum sales for mausoleum construction as indicated in the public relations development program.

38. As a result of defendant's failure to reserve and save the money collected from mausoleum sales for mausoleum construction, plaintiffs have been damaged in their not having

mausoleum space available. They are without guarantee that the necessary money will be available to construct the necessary mausoleum spaces.

COUNT VII

BREACH OF STATUTORY TRUST

39. Pursuant to Sections 8-4-82 and 8-4-83, U.C.A., defendants are required to deposit \$30.00 in an irrevocable endowment care trust fund for each mausoleum space sold. The required sum is payable to the trust upon full payment of the contract price. The funds in this trust are to be collected for the purpose of maintenance and care of the cemetery property. These trust funds are to be invested in accordance with Section 10-2-1, Utah Code Annotated, which requires the standard of care that men of prudence, discretion and intelligence exercise in the management of their own affairs.

40. Contrary to the requirements of Section 33-2-1, Utah Code Annotated, defendants have substituted and maintain over 40% of the trust corpus with accounts receivable. This is money owing to defendants on sales contracts and is by its very nature noninvestable.

41. As a result of this ongoing practice, the endowment care trust fund remains over 40% uninvested and thus is not capable of the proper generation of funds for endowment care cemetery maintenance as required by law. As a result, plaintiffs and their families who are effectively the beneficiaries of this endowment care trust fund, are damaged by the loss of available trust funds for cemetery maintenance at Memorial

Estates Cemeteries; and further, plaintiffs are deprived of the peace, comfort and solitude of having an adequate endowment care trust as promised by the contract.

COUNT VIII

INVASION OF TRUST CORPUS

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